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prohibits a recipient from partici-
pating in Federal Government procure-
ment contracts and covered non-
procurement transactions for a tem-
porary period, pending completion of
an investigation and any judicial or ad-
ministrative proceedings that may
ensue. A recipient so prohibited is sus-
pended, in accordance with the Federal
Acquisition Regulation for procure-
ment contracts (48 CFR part 9, subpart
9.4) and the common rule, Government-
wide Debarment and Suspension (Non-
procurement), that implements Execu-
tive Order 12549 and Executive Order
12689. Suspension of a recipient is a dis-
tinct and separate action from suspen-
sion of an award or suspension of pay-
ments under an award.

PART 85—CIVIL MONETARY
PENALTIES INFLATION ADJUSTMENT

Sec.

85.1 In general.

85.2 [Reserved]

85.3 Adjustments to penalties for violations
occurring on or before November 2, 2015.

856.6 Adjustments to penalties for violations
occurring after November 2, 2015.

AUTHORITY: 5 U.S.C. 301, 28 U.S.C. 503; Pub.
L. 101-410, 104 Stat. 890, as amended by Pub.
L. 104-134, 110 Stat. 1321; Pub. L. 114-74, sec-
tion 701, 28 U.S.C. 2461 note.

SOURCE: Order No. 2249-99, 64 FR 47103, Aug.
30, 1999, unless otherwise noted.

§85.1 In general.

(a) For violations occurring on or be-
fore November 2, 2015, and for civil pen-
alties assessed before August 1, 2016,
whose associated violations occurred
after November 2, 2015, the civil mone-
tary penalties provided by law within
the jurisdiction of the Department of
Justice and listed in section 85.3 are
adjusted as set forth in that section, in
accordance with the requirements of
the Federal Civil Penalties Inflation
Adjustment Act of 1990, Public Law
104-410, 104 Stat. 890, in effect prior to
November 2, 2015.

(b) For civil penalties assessed after
August 1, 2016, whose associated viola-
tions occurred after November 2, 2015,
the civil monetary penalties provided
by law within the jurisdiction of the
Department of Justice are adjusted as
set forth in section 85.5, in accordance
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with the requirements of the Bipar-
tisan Budget Act of 2015, Public Law
114-74, section 701 (Nov. 2, 2015), 28
U.S.C. 2461 note.

[AG Order No. 3690-2016, 81 FR 42500, June 30,
2016]

§85.2 [Reserved]

§85.3 Adjustments to penalties for vio-
lations occurring on or before No-
vember 2, 2015.

For all violations occurring on or be-
fore November 2, 2015, and for assess-
ments made before August 1, 2016, for
violations occurring after November 2,
2015, the civil monetary penalties pro-
vided by law within the jurisdiction of
the respective components of the De-
partment, as set forth in paragraphs (a)
through (d) of this section, are adjusted
as provided in this section in accord-
ance with the inflation adjustment pro-
cedures prescribed in section 5 of the
Federal Civil Penalties Inflation Ad-
justment Act of 1990, Public Law 101-
410, as in effect prior to November 2,
2015. The adjusted penalties set forth in
paragraphs (a), (c), and (d) of this sec-
tion are effective for violations occur-
ring on or after September 29, 1999, and
on or before November 2, 2015, and for
assessments made before August 1,
2016, for violations occurring after No-
vember 2, 2015. For civil penalties as-
sessed after August 1, 2016, whose asso-
ciated violations occurred after No-
vember 2, 2015, see the adjusted penalty
amounts in section 85.5.

(a) Civil Division. (1) 5 U.S.C. App. 4
102(f)(6)(C)(i), Ethics in Government
Act of 1978, knowing and willful disclo-
sure, solicitation, or receipt of infor-
mation with respect to blind trusts:
from $10,000 to $11,000.

(2) 5 U.S.C. App. 4 102(f)(6)(C)(ii), Eth-
ics in Government Act of 1978, neg-
ligent disclosure, solicitation, or re-
ceipt of information with respect to
blind trusts: from $5,000 to $5,500.

(3) 5 U.S.C. App. 4 104(a), Ethics in
Government Act of 1978, falsification or
failure to file required reports: from
$10,000 to $11,000.

(4) 5 U.S.C. App. 4 105(c)(2), Ethics in
Government Act of 1978, unlawful ac-
quisition or use of public reports: from
$10,000 to $11,000.
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(6) 5 U.S.C. App. 4 504(a), Ethics Re-
form Act of 1989, violations of limita-
tions on outside earned income and em-
ployment: from $10,000 to $11,000.

(6) 12 U.S.C. 1833a(b)(1), Financial In-
stitutions Reform, Recovery, and En-
forcement Act of 1989, violation: from
$1,000,000 to $1,100,000.

(7) 12 U.S.C. 1833a(b)(2), Financial In-
stitutions Reform, Recovery, and En-
forcement Act of 1989, continuing vio-
lations (per day): minimum from
$1,000,000 to $1,100,000; maximum from
$5,000,000 to $5,500,000.

(8) 22 U.S.C. 2399b(a)(3)(A), Foreign
Assistance Act of 1961, fraudulent
claim for assistance: from $2,000 to
$2,200.

(9) 31 U.S.C. 3729(a), False Claims
Act, violations: minimum from $5,000
to $5,600; maximum from $10,000 to
$11,000.

(10) 31 U.S.C. 3802(a)(1), Program
Fraud Civil Remedies Act, violation in-
volving false claim: from $5,000 to
$5,500.

(11) 31 U.S.C. 3802(a)(2), Program
Fraud Civil Remedies Act, violation in-
volving false statement: from $5,000 to
$5,500.

(12) 40 U.S.C. 489(b)(1), Federal Prop-
erty and Administrative Services Act
of 1949, violation involving surplus gov-
ernment property: from $2,000 to $2,200.

(13) 41 U.S.C. 55(a)(1)(B), Anti-Kick-
back Act of 1986, violation involving
kickbacks: from $10,000 to $11,000.

(b) Civil Rights Division. (1) 18 U.S.C.
248(¢c)(2)(B), Freedom of Access to Clin-
ic Entrances Act of 1994 (Nonviolent
Physical Obstruction):

(i) The civil monetary penalty
amount for a first order for nonviolent
physical obstruction, initially set at
$10,000, is adjusted to $11,000 for a viola-
tion occurring on or after September
29, 1999, and before April 28, 2014, and is
adjusted to $16,000 for a violation oc-
curring on or after April 28, 2014.

(ii) The civil monetary penalty
amount for a subsequent order for non-
violent physical obstruction, initially
set at $15,000, is adjusted to $16,500 for
a violation occurring on or after April
28, 2014.

(2) 18 U.S.C. 248(c)(2)(B), Freedom of
Access to Clinic Entrances Act of 1994
(Other Violations):

§85.3

(i) The civil monetary penalty
amount for a first order other than for
nonviolent physical obstruction, ini-
tially set at $15,000, is adjusted to
$16,500 for a violation occurring on or
after April 28, 2014.

(ii) The civil monetary penalty
amount for a subsequent order other
than for nonviolent physical obstruc-
tion, initially set at $25,000, is adjusted
to $27,500 for a violation occurring on
or after September 29, 1999, and before
April 28, 2014, and is adjusted to $37,500
for a violation occurring on or after
April 28, 2014.

(3) 42 U.S.C. 3614(d)(1)(C), Fair Hous-
ing Act of 1968, as amended (Pattern or
Practice Violation):

(i) The civil monetary penalty
amount for a first order, initially set
at $50,000, is adjusted to $55,000 for a
violation occurring on or after Sep-
tember 29, 1999, and before April 28,
2014, and is adjusted to $75,000 for a vio-
lation occurring on or after April 28,
2014.

(ii) The civil monetary penalty
amount for a subsequent order, ini-
tially set at $100,000, is adjusted to
$110,000 for a violation occurring on or
after September 29, 1999, and before
April 28, 2014, and is adjusted to $150,000
for a violation occurring on or after
April 28, 2014.

4) 50 U.S.C. App. 597(b)(3),
Servicemembers Civil Relief Act of
2003, as amended:

(i) The civil monetary penalty
amount for a first violation, initially
set at $565,000, is adjusted to $60,000 for
a violation occurring on or after April
28, 2014.

(ii) The civil monetary penalty
amount for a subsequent violation, ini-
tially set at $110,000, is adjusted to
$120,000 for a violation occurring on or
after April 28, 2014.

(c) Criminal Division. 18 U.S.C. 216(b),
Ethics Reform Act of 1989, violation:
from $50,000 to $55,000.

(d) Drug Enforcement Administration.
21 U.S.C. 961(1), Controlled Substances
Import Export Act, transshipment and
in-transit shipment of controlled sub-
stances: from $25,000 to $27,500.

[Order No. 2249-99, 64 FR 47103, Aug. 30, 1999,
as amended by AG Order No. 3324-2014, 79 FR
17436, Mar. 28, 2014; AG Order 3690-2016, 81 FR
42500, June 30, 2016]
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§85.5 Adjustments to penalties for vio-
lations occurring after November 2,
2015.

(a) For civil penalties assessed after
February 12, 2024, whose associated vio-
lations occurred after November 2, 2015,
the civil monetary penalties provided
by law within the jurisdiction of the
Department are adjusted as set forth in
the seventh column of table 1 to this
section.

(b) For civil penalties assessed after
January 30, 2023, and on or before Feb-
ruary 12, 2024 whose associated viola-
tions occurred after November 2, 2015,
the civil monetary penalties provided
by law within the jurisdiction of the
Department are set forth in the sixth
column of table 1 to this section. For
civil penalties assessed after May 9,
2022, and on or before January 30, 2023,
whose associated violations occurred

28 CFR Ch. | (7-1-25 Edition)

after November 2, 2015, the civil mone-
tary penalties provided by law within
the jurisdiction of the Department are
set forth in the fifth column of table 1
to this section. For civil penalties as-
sessed after December 13, 2021, and on
or before May 9, 2022, whose associated
violations occurred after November 2,
2015, the civil monetary penalties pro-
vided by law within the jurisdiction of
the Department are set forth in the
fourth column of table 1 to this sec-
tion.

(c) For civil penalties assessed on or
before December 13, 2021, the civil mon-
etary penalties provided by law within
the jurisdiction of the Department are
set forth in 28 CFR 85.5 (July 1, 2020).

(d) All figures set forth in table 1 to
this section are maximum penalties,
unless otherwise indicated.
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Department of Justice

[89 FR 9766, Feb. 12, 2024]

PART 90—VIOLENCE AGAINST
WOMEN

Subpart A—General Provisions

Sec.

90.1 General.

90.2 Definitions.

90.3 Participation by faith-based organiza-
tions.

90.4 Grant conditions.

Subpart B—The STOP (Services * Training *

Officers * Prosecutors) Violence
Against Women Formula Grant Pro-
gram

90.10 STOP (Services * Training * Officers *
Prosecutors) Violence Against Women
Formula Grant Program—general.

90.11 State office.

90.12 Implementation plans.

90.13 Forensic medical examination pay-
ment requirement.

90.14 Judicial notification requirement.

90.15 Costs for criminal charges and protec-
tion orders.

90.16 Polygraph testing prohibition.

90.17 Subgranting of funds.

90.18 Matching funds.

90.19 Application content.

90.21 Evaluation.

90.22 Review of State applications.

90.23 Annual grantee and subgrantee report-
ing.

90.24 Activities that may compromise vic-
tim safety and recovery.

90.25 Reallocation of funds.

Subpart C—Reimbursement to Tribal Gov-
ernments for Expenses Incurred Exer-
cising Special Tribal Criminal Jurisdic-
fion

90.30
90.31

Definitions.

Eligibility.

90.32 Reimbursement request.

90.33 Division of funds: maximum allowable
reimbursement and waivers.

90.3¢ Annual maximum allowable
bursement per participating Tribe.

90.35 Conditions for waiver of annual max-
imum.

90.36 Categories of expenses eligible for re-
imbursement.

90.37 Ineligible expenses.

90.38 Collection of expenses from offenders.

90.39 Expenses documentation.

90.40 Other sources of funding.

90.41 Denial of specific expenses for reim-
bursement.

90.42 Monitoring and audit.

reim-

§90.1

90.43 Corrective action.

Subpart D—Grants to Encourage Arrest
Policies and Enforcement of Protection
Orders

Scope.

General.

Definitions.

Eligibility.

Speedy notice to victims.
Application content.
Evaluation.

Review of applications.

90.60
90.61
90.62
90.63
90.64
90.65
90.66
90.67

Subpart E [Reserved]

AUTHORITY: 42 U.S.C. 3711 et seq.; 42 U.S.C.
13925; 25 U.S.C. 1304(h).

SOURCE: 60 FR 19477, Apr. 18, 1995, unless
otherwise noted.

Subpart A—General Provisions

§90.1 General.

(a) This part implements certain pro-
visions of the Violence Against Women
Act (VAWA), and subsequent legisla-
tion as follows:

(1) The Violence Against Women Act
(VAWA), Title IV of the Violent Crime
Control and Law Enforcement Act of
1994, Public Law 103-322 (Sept. 13, 1994);

(2) The Violence Against Women Act
of 2000 (VAWA 2000), Division B of the
Victims of Trafficking and Violence
Protection Act of 2000, Public Law 106—
386 (Oct. 28, 2000);

(3) The Violence Against Women Of-
fice Act, Title IV of the 21st Century
Department of Justice Appropriations
Authorization Act, Public Law 107-273
(Nov. 2, 2002);

(4) The Violence Against Women and
Department of Justice Reauthorization
Act of 20056 (VAWA 2005), Public Law
109-162 (January 5, 2006); and,

(6) The Violence Against Women Re-
authorization Act of 2013 (VAWA 2013),
Public Law 113-4 (Mar. 7, 2013).

(b) Subpart B of this part defines pro-
gram eligibility criteria and sets forth
requirements for application for and
administration of formula grants to
States to combat violent crimes
against women. This program is codi-
fied at 42 U.S.C. 3796gg through 3796gg—
5 and 3796gg-8.

(c) Subpart C of this part was re-
moved on September 9, 2013.
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